
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




 


1. Call to order 
2. Roll call and verification of quorum 
3. Certification and compliance with open meetings law 
4. Public comment 
5. Communications 
6. Approval of minutes of August 22, 2023 
7. R-138-2023 Enter into an agreement with Ehlers for proforma analysis related to 211 S Water St.  


TIME SENSITIVE ITEM 
8. R-139-2023 Enter into an agreement with Ehlers to create Tax Incremental District No 10. – 


Downtown Overlay      TIME SENSITIVE ITEM 
9. Discussion and possible action regarding revised Emmi Roth Tax Incremental Financial 


application 
10. Discussion and possible action regarding timing of 2023 bond issue 
11. Future agenda items          


a. September 26, 2023 
i. August fiscal reports 


ii. R-xxx-2023 Debt Issue 2023A – Bond issue 
iii. R-xxx-2023 Debt Issue 2023B – Promissory note issue 
iv. DPW site remediation bid specs (time sensitive item) 


b. October 10, 2023  
i. Single Audit report 


ii. R-xxx-2023 Establish city policy for facility rental charges to Stoughton Utilities 
and Emergency Medical Services 


c. To be determined – Creation and/or modification of city policies 
i. Future treatment of costs eligible for special assessments and related interest rate 


ii. Updates to fund balance policy, including policy specific to K-9 Fund 


 
OFFICIAL NOTICE AND AGENDA  


Notice is hereby given that the Finance Committee of the City of Stoughton, Wisconsin will hold a 
regular or special meeting as indicated on the date, time and location given below. 


 


 


Meeting of the: 


Date & time: 


 
Finance Committee of the City of Stoughton 
Tuesday, September 12, 2023 at 6:30 p.m. 
 
The meeting of the Finance Committee will be conducted as a hybrid meeting 
In person:  Council Chambers (2nd floor of the Public Safety Building, 321 S. Fourth St.) 
Virtual:  You can attend the meeting from your computer, tablet, or smartphone via Zoom 
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/82136181790?pwd=dFI5dWpvWmhmRFQ0bXdNV0lQVmlFZz09 
Meeting ID: 821 3618 1790 Passcode: 001882 
One tap mobile +13092053325,,82136181790#,,,,*001882# US  
Live-streamed:  https://wsto.tv/live and Spectrum Channel 981 or on TDS Channel 12.   
The WSTO-TV app is also available on Roku, Apple TV, Fire TV, Android and iOS. 
Note:  Effective September 1, 2023, the TDS channel number for WSTO-TV will be 981. 
 
Members:   Brett Schumacher (Chair), Lisa Reeves (Vice-Chair), Leonard “Ozzie” Doom, Ben Heili, Greg 
Jenson, Mayor Tim Swadley (ex-officio), and David Thomas 







iii. Potential revisions of Capital Improvement Plan and Debt Management policy 
iv. Update policy regarding city asset disposal  


d. To be determined – Other 
i. Update regarding marketing of ARPA business revolving loan program 


ii. Yahara Riverfront Development developer and property sale agreements 
iii. Municipal Court receivables / debt collection policy 


12. Adjourn 
 


     Any person wishing to attend the meeting, whom because of a disability, requires special 
accommodation, should contact the Director of Finance’s office at (608) 873-6691 at least 24 hours before 
the scheduled meeting time so appropriate arrangements can be made.  
     In addition, any person wishing to speak or have their comments heard but does not have access to the 
internet should also contact the Director of Finance’s office at the number above at least 24 hours before 
the scheduled meeting so appropriate arrangements can be made.  


 
NOTE:  AN EXPANDED MEETING MAY CONSTITUTE A QUORUM OF THE COUNCIL 

















CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S FORREST ST, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


Enter into an agreement with Ehlers for a proforma analysis related to 211 S. Water St. 


Committee 
Action: 


Finance Committee recommended approval ____ on 09/12/2023 
TIME SENSITIVE ITEM 


Fiscal Impact:   $3,000 – Anticipate requesting reimbursement from developer 


File Number: R-138-2023 Date: 09/12/23 


The City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, Common Council does proclaim as follows: 


RECITALS: 


WHEREAS, the City received an application for Tax Incremental Financing (“TIF) on 
August 23, 2023 for renovations on the property at 211 S. Water Street in the amount of $514,250; 
and, 


WHEREAS, staff has recommended contracting with Ehlers to provide a proforma review 
of the Tax Increment Financing application; and, 


WHEREAS, Ehlers has provided the attached documentation regarding pricing for a 
proforma review; and, 


WHEREAS, it is anticipated that the developer will be requested to reimburse the City of 
the cost of the proforma review;  


NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that City staff is authorized to enter into a 
contract with Ehlers to perform a proforma analysis of the Tax Incremental Financing application 
for the property located at 211 S. Water St. 


Time sensitive item rationale – In addition to the creation of the TIF district, it is anticipated that 
multiple proforma analyses will be needed to the anticipated pending TIF applications.  Beginning 
the process early will potentially allow for concurrent proforma analyses which will provide the 
Council better information for their decisions. 


Council Action:         Adopted    Failed Vote 


Mayoral Action:        Accept    Veto  


Mayor Tim Swadley Date 
Council Action:         Override Vote 







1


Dave Ehlinger


From: Dustin Oler <DOler@walkerdunlop.com>
Sent: Wednesday, August 23, 2023 5:08 PM
To: Dave Ehlinger
Cc: Justin Hanson; Tim Swadley
Subject: 211 S Water Street - TIF Application
Attachments: Stoughton TIF Policy and Application.pdf; The Shop Lofts Underwriting TIF MODEL.xlsx; 211 S Water 


Map.pptx


Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Flagged


CAUTION: This email originated from outside your organiza on. Exercise cau on when opening a achments or clicking links, 
especially from unknown senders. 


Dave, 
 
Jus n Hanson and I have been working on re-zoning 211 S Water Street for residen al use.  Our current plans call to 
retrofit the building into 18-mul family units, while preserving the historic character of the building. We have moved 
past the planning commission with a posi ve recommenda on to City Council and are on the docket for the September 
12th mee ng.  As a part of our request we are applying for TIF financing and the crea on of a new TID, and have been 
working with Mayor Swadley and Gary Becker on that front.   
 
A ached please find our TIF Applica on, financial model, and site map.  We should have complete exterior renderings in 
the coming weeks. 
 
Please let me know if you need anything further at this me.  We look forward to working with you on this request. 
 
Thank you,   
 
 


Dustin Oler 
Associate Director | Capital Markets  
Walker & Dunlop 
7780 Elmwood Ave, Suite 205 
Middleton, WI 53562 
P: 608-831-6408 M: 608-347-4497  
DOler@walkerdunlop.com 
 
Use our website to send me a file over 20MB. 
   
Follow Us: LinkedIn | Facebook | Twitter | Instagram | YouTube 


  







 
 


Please complete this application, along with such additional documentation and information you wish to supplement this 
application. 


 
APPLICANT INFORMATION 


Name:  211 S Water Street, LLC  


Mailing Address: 4056 Lally Road, Oregon, WI 53575 
 


Phone: 608-347-4497 Email: olerdc08@gmail.com 
 


 


Legal Entity (check one):  Individual(s)   Corporation X LLC Partnership 
  


 Other:   


If not a Wisconsin corporation / partnership / LLC, state where organized:   


Will a new entity be created for ownership (check one)? X Yes No 
  


Principals of existing or proposed corporation / partnership / LLC and extent of ownership interests (add more 
pages, if necessary): 


 
Name Address Title Interest 


Dustin Oler 4056 Lally Road, Oregon, WI, 53575 Managing Member 31.25% 
Justin Hanson 1743 Apollo Cir, Stoughton, WI 53589 Managing Member 31.25% 
Jim Oler  Member 31.25% 
Adam Polizzi  Member 6.25% 


    
 


DEVELOPMENT TEAM 


Developer: Dustin Oler and Justin Hanson 
 


Architect: One Design & Engineering 


Surveyor:   Contractor:  KSW  
Other Members (add more pages, if necessary):  


Describe the Applicant and Development Team’s background, expertise, and experience in developing similar 
projects: 
Dustin Oler - 14 years in commercial real estate experience, currently an Associate Director at Walker & Dunlop, one of the largest multifamily capital 


providers in the country. My day-to-day role is helping clients/developers with debt and equity to advance their commercial projects, with an expertise 
in structuring multifamily debt. Justin Hanson - Experienced local business owner, currently working as a commercial real estate lender for ONE Community 
Bank. KSW - Madison-based general contractor with decades of ground up and renovation experience in all asset classes, including multi-family. 


 


 


 
City of Stoughton 


Tax Incremental Financing Application 



mailto:olerdc08@gmail.com





 


CITY GOALS OF TAX INCREMENTAL FINANCING 
 


The City has established goals for the use of tax incremental financing. Please indicate which goals you believe 
the proposed project advances. Select all that apply. If checked as applicable, please describe in further detail 
how the goal will be achieved. 


 


☐X  Whether the proposed tax increment district or project assists in the implementation of the City’s 


Comprehensive Plan. Please describe: One of the goals of the Comprehensive Plan was to enhance and maintain the City's 


downtown area through rehabilitation/redevelopment while respecting the City's character, adhering to surrounding uses and 


improving overall appearance. This project does just that as we will look to maintain the historic appearance (brick), while bringing it 


up to "new" quality, while also providing affordable housing to residents and increasing traffic to local businesses. 


☐X Whether the proposed tax increment district or project would eliminate blight, redevelop underused lands, or 


provide suitable sites for industrial, commercial or residential development. Please describe: The current building 


_a t  211 S Water Street is underutilized and blighted, yet is in a great location for residential development. With this 
redevelopment current residents will have access to brand new, yet affordable housing and downtown business will 
benefit from having 20-30 permanent residents within foot-steps of their doors. We are requesting a designation for a 
blight elimination TID. 


☐X Whether the proposed tax increment district or project would increase employment opportunities. Please 


describe: Having access to new, affordable housing downtown increases the chances of new businesses coming to the 


area, helping backfill any vacancies in our downtown commercial space.  It provides business owners a place to live 


close to their business and for more permanent residents to frequent them.  


 
 


☐X Whether the proposed tax increment district or project would increase the property tax base. Please describe: 
The current assessed value of the building at 211 S Water Street is $276,000. The anticipated assessed value, if sufficient TIF funds are 


obtained to move forward with the development, would be close to $2,000,000, significantly increasing the tax revenue generated at 


the property._ 
 
 


☐X Whether the proposed tax increment district or project would increase the availability of a range of workforce 


housing options, including affordable housing. Please describe: The project, while having no affordability requirements, 


have projected rents that fall below 60% of the area's Average Median Income. 


☐X 
 


provides walkability to all downtown amenities for the tenants. In addition the project will include high 
efficiency appliances, energy efficient lighting and plumbing fixtures, and bike racks.  


 
☐X Whether the proposed tax increment would help encourage unsubsidized private development. Please 


describe It is our belief that there is a lot of redevelopment opportunity in Stoughton, specifically in the downtown area. We believe 


this project could be the catalyst for future development or redevelopment and we would be interested in working with the city on that 


going forward.  


Whether the proposed tax increment district or project would include sustainability measures that will promote 


a healthy environment, including measures to reduce climate change impacts. Please describe The location 







PROJECT AND PROPERTY INFORMATION 
 


Address and / or Parcel Number(s) of proposed development: 211 S Water Street, Stoughton, WI  
 


Overall Project Summary and Objectives (include information describing the current and proposed zoning and uses of 
the site; description of end users; estimated jobs created; anticipated value created; consistency with TID project plan, City 
Comprehensive Plan, zoning ordinance, subdivision ordinance, and other City ordinances and policies as applicable; 
whether there has been or will be outreach to the public or neighborhood): 


 
The overall goal of the project is to redevelop the existing industrial/warehouse building into 18 multifamily residences. We are working 
through the re-zoning process with a request for PD Zoning to allow for first floor residential use, without a commercial component. 
The exterior and main structural components of the building would remain, with the goal of preserving the brick exterior and many 
interior structural components, while bringing all components up to a level of new construction. The finished exterior will have a similar 
look to the adjacent brick buildings, while having a modern touch with new windows, doors, and sandblasted brick or another similar 
façade. The theme of the project would be industrial style finishes, with high ceilings, and exposed steel and brick to keep the historic 
feel intact. The unit mix, as currently configured, would include 1 studio loft unit, 4 micro one-bedroom units, 10 standard one-bedroom 
units, 2 two-bedroom units, and 1 three-bedroom unit. The total rentable square feet would be 11,582 with an average unit size of 643 
square feet. The projected rents would all fall under 60% of the Area Median Income while increasing the assessed value by ~7x. The 
project is in line with TID project plans and the City Comprehensive Plan by enhancing the quality of a downtown building, while 
staying true to the historic look and feel, providing brand new yet affordable housing to the City's residents, and by bringing more 
permanent residents downtown to increase economic opportunities for future and current businesses. We have reached out to many of 
the local downtown businesses with all responding with positivity and excitement. 


 


 
 
 


For a project that contains housing, describe whether the project would increase the availability of a range of workforce 


housing options, including affordable housing. If the project will not increase the availability of affordable housing, explain 


why it does not, and explain whether the project could include affordable housing if the City provides additional TIF support. 
The project, as currently presented, would contain 18 units with a variety of one, two, and three bedroom floorplans that all have 


projected rents under 60% of the AMI. 


 
 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 


Describe whether the project would include sustainability measures that will promote a healthy environment, including 


measures to reduce climate change impacts. The location provides walkability to all downtown amenities for the tenants. 
In addition the project will include high efficiency appliances, energy efficient lighting and plumbing fixtures, and bike 
racks. Residents will have an opportunity to work and live downtown thus reducing emissions from their previous 
commute to work and to the shops and restaurants they frequent.  


 
 







 
Describe the request for tax increment financing. 
We are requesting a TIF allocation in the amount of $1,161,000. We understand the City's preferred TIF method is a 


Pay-as-you-go allotment. We would look for 95% of the tax increment to be reimbursed to the project over the 27-year 
payback period. Based on our model this would provide over $61,000 in addition tax revenue to the City during the 
initial 27-year period, before recognizing the entire increment thereafter in perpetuity, which is estimated 7-8x the 
current real estate taxes paid. We understand the 95% increment going towards repayment is higher then the City is 


used to, however as you will see in our model, it is necessary to help close the gap as detailed below. 
 
 


“BUT FOR” TEST 


Why is the requested TIF funding needed? Explain why the project cannot proceed without such support? In addition, 
provide a complete description of the sources and uses of funding for the project. If land will be purchased for the project, 
please describe the purchase price, and supply any appraisal or other documentation available that provides information 
relating to the fair market value of the property. If you are paying more than fair market value for the property, 
please explain why. 
Based on the TIF financial model that is being provided accompanying this Application, our total costs for the project are 
approximately $3,233,000, with a stabilized completion valuation of $2,320,000. This equates to a shortfall of $913,000 
The $1,161,000 in requested TIF funds would provide for $514,250 in day 1 equity if monetized with a bank at current 
interest rates. This still leaves an almost $400,000 gap based on an estimated loan amount able to achieve at current rates.  
At this point we are willing to fill that shortfall with additional equity. The total amount of equity based on our model is 
$1,308,664 or 40.5% of total costs. The margins to complete the project are extremely thin with a estimated return on cost 
at 4.30%, We looked for other ways of closing the financing gap via a WEDC grant, however they require a business to 
operate in the buildings they provide grants for. 
The current building is owned by Jim Oler, my father. We will be purchasing from him via a mix of cash and ownership in 
the new project. I have put together sale comparables for other similar buildings that have recently sold that support a 
market value of $560,000. Those have also been provided with this Application. 


 


 
What economic benefits will result due to the development? 


In addition to the tax increment created by the redevelopment there is huge economic benefits to the downtown 
 


businesses. The project will provide affordable housing for approximately 25 residents who will have walkable access 
to the bevy of local shops and restaurants downtown. Based on what we believe to be conservative projections, the 
economic implications of our tenants eating and shopping locally would bring nearly $150,000 annually in revenue to 
the downtown businesses.







 
 


What non-economic benefits will the development provide to the community? 
The current building at 211 S Water Street isn't up to the standards of some of the neighboring uses. By reinvesting in the 
asset, we would turn a blighted site in the downtown into a Class-A multifamily asset, while keeping the historic character 
intact. The project will allow for new residents to join the community at a price point more can afford. 


 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 


FILING REQUIREMENTS 
 


You must provide all the following items with your signed application: 
 


• Reimbursement Agreement: Provide a signed Reimbursement Agreement in the form approved by the City. 
 


• Site Map: Provide a map that shows the location of the site and its immediate surroundings. 
 


• Project Renderings: Provide preliminary architectural drawings, plans, and renderings for the project. 
 


• Analysis of Financial Need: Each application must include financial analyses that demonstrate the need for TIF 
assistance, including project budgets, proformas describing sources and uses of funds, and revenue projections. 


 
• Project Timeline: An outline of the timeline envisioned for the project to completion. 


 
The City may require additional documentation, including but not limited to market studies, appraisals, and / or other 
documents. 


 
AGREEMENT 


 


By signing this application, Applicant agrees to the following: 
 
• The information submitted is correct. 
• I understand that the City reserves the right to approve or not approve this application, in the City’s sole discretion. 


 
 
Dustin Oler      Managing Member of 211 S Water Street, LLC 


Applicant Printed Name Applicant Title 
 
 


Dustin Oler      8/23/23 
Applicant Signature Date 







City of Stoughton Policy 
for the Creation of Tax Incremental Finance Districts 


and the Approval of TIF Projects. 
 


1. Purpose. This policy has been prepared to assist the City in determining whether 
to create a Tax Incremental Finance District, and in determining whether to approve 
the use of Tax Incremental Financing for particular projects. The authority to 
approve the use of Tax Incremental Financing is vested solely in the City Council. 
The City reserves the right to reject any and all projects, including projects that are 
eligible for the use of Tax Incremental Financing, for any reason or no reason. The 
City Council reserves the right to approve or disapprove any project as it deems 
appropriate. 


 
2. General Goals for the use of Tax Incremental Financing. The City may consider 


whether a TIF District or a TIF project serves one or more of the following general 
goals when deciding whether to create a TIF District, or whether to provide TIF 
financing for a particular project: 


 
A. Eliminate blighting influences, redevelop underutilized lands, and provide 


suitable sites for industrial, commercial or residential development. 
B. Achieve or accelerate development on sites that would not be developed 


without the use of Tax Incremental Financing. 
C. Increase employment opportunities in the City. 
D. Increase the tax base for the City and other taxing jurisdictions. 
E. Assists implementation of the City’s Comprehensive Plan. 
F. Provide workforce and affordable housing opportunities. 
G. Includes sustainability measures that will promote a healthy environment, 


including measures to reduce climate change impacts. 
H. Encourage unsubsidized private development in the City. 


 
3. TIF District Creation. 


 
A. TIF Districts will be created in accordance with the procedures and standards 


in Wis. Stat. § 66.1105, and as such statute may be amended. (See Appendix 
A - Department of Revenue TIF Creation Checklist). 


B. The City Council may, in individual cases, expand the process for creating a 
TIF District in such manner as it deems appropriate. 


 
4. TIF Project Approval. All TIF projects must be approved by the City Council, 


following review and report by the Finance Committee. The Finance Director shall 
provide a report to the Finance Committee and the City Council addressing 







the following issues, which shall be considered by the Finance Committee and 
City Council before approving any TIF project: 


 
A. Is the project authorized by the Project Plan for the TIF District? 
B. Does the project serve one or more of the City’s general goals for the use of 


TIF? 
C. Is Tax Incremental Financing feasible, in that the TIF District will support 


the level of TIF investment? 
D. Is the amount of Tax Increment Financing requested reasonably necessary 


to make the project financially viable? 
E. Should a development agreement be required, and what terms should be 


included in the agreement? 
F. Is more process (such as additional public hearings or a referendum) 


appropriate? 
G. Such other factors as either the Finance Committee or the City Council 


deem appropriate. 
 


5. Permissive Referendum. Before the City may issue bonds or otherwise borrow 
funds that will be payable over more than 10 years to fund a TIF project, the City 
Council must first adopt a resolution declaring its intent to borrow the funds. If a 
number of electors of the city equal to at least 15% of the of the votes cast for 
governor at the last general election in the city sign and file a petition conforming 
to the requirements of Wis. Stat. § 8.40 with the city clerk requesting submission of 
the resolution, the City may not issue bonds or borrow funds for financing the TIF 
project without calling a special election to submit the question of bonding or 
borrowing to the city electors for their approval. 


 
6. Negotiations. City staff and the city attorney will negotiate development agreements 


within the parameters established by the City Council, and subject to final approval 
by the City Council. 


 
7. Suspension of Policy. This policy shall be followed in all cases, except where the 


common council approves deviating from this policy by a vote of two-thirds of all 
members of the common council. 







211 S 
Water 
Street







Water Street Lofts
Stoughton, WI


Number of Units:
18


Per Unit Per Unit % of EGI
Proforma 
Scenario


Gross Potential Rent $241,200 $13,400 $241,200 $13,400 102.8% NOI $138,913 $7,717
Vacancy ($12,060) ($670) ($12,060) ($670) -5.1% 5% Debt Service $115,424
Concessions $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 0% Cash Flow $23,488
Bad Debt $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 0% DSCR 1.203
Net Rental Income $229,140 $12,730 $229,140 $12,730 97.7% 5% Debt Yield 9.85%


Cap Rate 6.00% Per Unit Value + TIF and Grant
Other Income: Valuation $2,320,000 $129,000 $2,834,250


Resident Parking $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0%
Storage $0 $0 $0 $0 Loan Amount $1,410,000 $78,000
Pet $3,510 $195 $3,510 $195 1.5% LTV 60.8%
Pet Deposits (one time) $900 $50 $900 $50 0.4% LTC 43.6% 2022 Assessment: 249,600$                      
TIF Income $0 $0 $0 $0 Term 5 2022 Taxes: 4,286$                          
Misc. Income $1,000 $56 $1,000 $56 0.4% Amortization 30 Mil Rate: 1.717256%


Total Other Income $5,410 $301 $5,410 $301 2.3% SOFR 5.00%
Spread 2.25% Est. Fair Market Value 257,082$                      


Effective Gross Income $234,550 $13,031 $234,550 $13,031 100.0% Interest Rate 7.25% Assessment Ratio 97.09%
Loan Constant 8.19%


Expenses: 5.0% 5.0% Annual Payment $115,424 $74,000
Management Fee $11,728 $652 $11,728 $652 5.0% 5% Ending Balance $1,330,741
Real Estate Taxes $34,345 $1,908 $34,345 $1,908 14.6%
Insurance $7,000 $389 $7,000 $389 3.0% SOURCES:


Advertising & Promotion $1,000 $56 $1,000 $56 0.4% Proposed Loan $1,410,000
Office Expense $500 $28 $500 $28 0.2% TIF Funding $514,250 15.9%  
Legal & Audit $1,000 $56 $1,000 $56 0.4% Grant Funding $0
Misc. Admin. $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0% Equity: $1,308,664 40.5%


Administration Expense $2,500 $139 $2,500 $139 1.1% TOTAL SOURCES: $3,232,914
Commissions $1,500 $83 $1,500 $83 0.6% USES:
Maintenance $7,500 $417 $7,500 $417 3.2% Construction Costs $3,232,914


Payroll $9,000 $500 $9,000 $500 3.8% Closing Costs $0
Gas/Electric - Vacant/common area $1,500 $83 $1,500 $83 0.6% TOTAL USES: $3,232,914 $2,972,914 Developer Shortfall Equity
Cable & Internet $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0% $398,664 $912,914 < Without TIF or Grant


Utilities $1,500 $83 $1,500 $83 0.6%
Water & Sewer $5,465 $304 $5,465 $304 2.3%


Trash Removal $2,500 $139 $2,500 $139 1.1% Construction Costs: $2,458,664
Pest Control $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0% Land: $560,000 $31,111
Bldg R&M $10,000 $556 $10,000 $556 4.3% Hard Costs: $2,199,750 $122,208
Painting/Decorating $2,000 $111 $2,000 $111 0.9% Soft Costs: $279,189 $15,511
Cleaning/Turnover $4,500 $250 $4,500 $250 1.9% Developer Fee: 6.00% $193,975 $10,776
Fire/Security $500 $28 $500 $28 0.2% Total Costs: $3,232,914 $179,606
Garage/Parking $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0%
Elevator $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0% Equity: $1,308,664
Snow Removal $1,000 $56 $1,000 $56 0.4%
Landscaping/Grounds $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0% Return on Costs: 4.30%


Repairs & Maintenance $20,500 $1,139 $20,500 $1,139 8.7% Cash on Cash: 1.79%
Total Operating Expenses $92,037 $5,113 $92,037 $5,113 39.2%
Cap Ex $3,600 $200 $3,600 $200 1.5% $200
Total Expenses $95,637 $5,313 $95,637 $5,313 40.8%


Net Operating Income $138,913 $7,717 $138,913 $7,717 59.2%


Total R&M and Payroll $29,500 $1,639 $29,500 $1,639 12.6%
Before Taxes & CapEx $57,692 $3,205 $57,692 $3,205


Taxes


Budget Proforma Loan Proforma





		08 R-136-2023 Enter into agreement for proforma analysis related to 211 S. Water St.pdf

		211 S Water St TIF request 2023.pdf

		08 TIF Application - 211 S Water St.pdf

		08 TIF Application - 211 S Water St.pdf

		Stoughton TIF Policy and Application.pdf

		Name:  211 S Water Street, LLC

		4056 Lally Road, Oregon, WI 53575

		Principals of existing or proposed corporation / partnership / LLC and extent of ownership interests (add more pages, if necessary):

		DEVELOPMENT TEAM



		Describe the Applicant and Development Team’s background, expertise, and experience in developing similar projects:

		CITY GOALS OF TAX INCREMENTAL FINANCING

		PROJECT AND PROPERTY INFORMATION

		“BUT FOR” TEST

		FILING REQUIREMENTS

		AGREEMENT





		211 S Water Map (002) [Read-Only].pdf



		The Shop Lofts Underwriting TIF MODEL.pdf












CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S FORREST ST, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


Enter into an agreement with Ehlers to create Tax Increment District No. 10 


Committee 
Action: 


Fiscal Impact:   


Finance Committee recommended approval ____ on 09/12/2023 
TIME SENSITIVE ITEM 


$14,000 – Anticipate requesting reimbursement from developer 


File Number: R-139-2023 Date: 09/12/23 


The City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, Common Council does proclaim as follows: 


RECITALS: 


WHEREAS, the City authorized staff to commence processing a request for Tax 
Incremental Financing (“TIF”) for the property located at 211 S. Water St; and, 


WHEREAS, the above property is currently located within TIF District #4 – Downtown 
which could incur project costs through March 23, 2021 and is scheduled to close in 2026; and, 


WHEREAS, the City’s economic development consultant anticipates several more TIF 
requests will be submitted in the coming months for various downtown properties; and, 


WHEREAS, the City’s economic development consultant has recommended the creation 
of a new overlay TIF District if the Finance Committee and Common Council are included to 
support the 211 S. Water St and other potential projects; and, 


WHEREAS, the City’s municipal advisor, Ehlers, has provided the attached 
documentation regarding proposed services and pricing for the creation of TIF District #10 – 
Downtown Overlay; and, 


WHEREAS, the City will seek reimbursement from the developer to cover the cost of the 
TIF District; and, 


WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton Finance Committee recommends authorizing City staff 
to enter into an agreement with Ehlers to create Tax Incremental Financing District No. 10 – 
Downtown Overlay;  


NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Common Council of the City of 
Stoughton authorizes City staff to enter into an agreement with Ehlers to create Tax Increment 
Financing District No 10. – Downtown Overlay. 


Time sensitive item rationale – In addition to the creation of the TIF district, it is anticipated that 
multiple proforma analyses will be needed to the anticipated pending TIF applications.  Beginning 







 


 


the process early will potentially allow for concurrent proforma analyses which will provide the 
Council better information for their decisions. 


 
Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote       
  
 
Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  
  
                                             
Mayor Tim Swadley    Date 


 
Council Action:           Override  Vote       







____________________________________________________________________________________________


Documentation of Municipal Advisor Relationship 1
Ehlers & Associates, Inc.                                                                                                             August 29, 2023


August 29, 2023


Dave Ehlinger, Director of Finance/Comptroller
City of Stoughton, Wisconsin
207 S. Forrest Street
Stoughton, WI 53589


Re: Written Municipal Advisor Client Disclosure with the City of Stoughton (“Client”) for
2024 TID No. 10 Creation (“Project” Pursuant to MSRB Rule G-42)


Dear Dave:


As a registered Municipal Advisor, we are required by Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board
(MSRB) Rules to provide you with certain written information and disclosures prior to, upon
or promptly, after the establishment of a municipal advisory relationship as defined in
Securities and Exchange Act Rule 15Ba1-1.  To establish our engagement as your Municipal
Advisor, we must inform you that:


When providing advice, we are required to act in a fiduciary capacity, which includes a1.
duty of loyalty and a duty of care.  This means we are required to act solely in your
best interest.
We have an obligation to fully and fairly disclose to you in writing all material actual or2.
potential conflicts of interest that might impair our ability to render unbiased and
competent advice to you.  We are providing these and other required disclosures in
Appendix A attached hereto.


As your Municipal Advisor, Ehlers shall provide this advice and service at such fees, as
described within Appendix B attached hereto.


This documentation and all appendices hereto shall be effective as of its date unless
otherwise terminated by either party upon 30 days written notice to the other party.


During the term of our municipal advisory relationship, this writing might be amended or
supplemented to reflect any material change or additions.


We look forward to working with you on this Project.


Sincerely,


Ehlers & Associates


David Ferris,CPA
Senior Municipal Advisor


_______________


1   This document is intended to satisfy the requirements of MSRB Rule G-42(b) and Rule G-42(c).







____________________________________________________________________________________________


Documentation of Municipal Advisor Relationship – Appendix A Page 1
Ehlers                                                                                                                                               August 29, 2023


Appendix A


DISCLOSURE OF CONFLICTS OF INTEREST/OTHER REQUIRED
INFORMATION


Actual/Potential Material Conflicts of Interest
Ehlers has no known actual or potential material conflicts of interest that might
impair its ability either to render unbiased and competent advice or to fulfill its
fiduciary duty to Client.


Other Engagements or Relationships Impairing Ability to Provide Advice
Ehlers is not aware of any other engagement or relationship Ehlers has that might
impair Ehlers’ ability to either render unbiased and competent advice to or to fulfill
its fiduciary duty to Client.


Affiliated Entities
Ehlers offers related services through two affiliates of Ehlers, Bond Trust Service
Corporation (BTSC) and Ehlers Investment Partners (EIP).  BTSC provides paying
agent services while Ehlers Investment Partners (EIP) provides investment related
services and bidding agent service. Ehlers and these affiliates do not share fees.  If
either service is needed in conjunction with an Ehlers municipal advisory
engagement, Client will be asked whether or not they wish to retain either affiliate to
provide service. If BTSC or EIP are retained to provide service, a separate agreement
with that affiliate will be provided for Client’s consideration and approval.


Solicitors/Payments Made to Obtain/Retain Client Business
Ehlers does not use solicitors to secure municipal engagements; nor does it make
direct or indirect payments to obtain or retain Client business.


Payments from Third Parties
Ehlers does not receive any direct or indirect payments from third parties to enlist
Ehlers recommendation to the Client of its services, any municipal securities
transaction or any financial product.


Payments/Fee-splitting Arrangements
Ehlers does not share fees with any other parties and any provider of investments or
services to the Client.  However, within a joint proposal with other professional
service providers, Ehlers could be the contracting party or be a subcontractor to the
contracting party resulting in a fee splitting arrangement. In such cases, the fee due
Ehlers will be identified in a Municipal Advisor writing and no other fees will be paid
to Ehlers from any of the other participating professionals in the joint proposal.


Municipal Advisor Registration
Ehlers is registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) and
Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board (MSRB).







____________________________________________________________________________________________


Documentation of Municipal Advisor Relationship – Appendix A Page 2
Ehlers August 29, 2023


Material Legal or Disciplinary Events
Neither Ehlers nor any of its officers or municipal advisors have been involved in any
legal or disciplinary events reported on Form MA or MA-I nor are there any other
material legal or disciplinary events to be reported.  Ehlers’ application for permanent
registration as a Municipal Advisor with the (SEC) was granted on July 28, 2014 and
contained the information prescribed under Section 15B(a)(2) of the Securities and
Exchange Act of 1934 and rules thereunder. It did not list any information on legal or
disciplinary disclosures.


Client may access Ehlers’ most recent Form MA and each most recent Form MA-I by
searching the Securities and Exchange Commission’s EDGAR system (currently
available at http://www.sec.gov/edgar/searchedgar/companysearch.html) and
searching under either our Company Name (Ehlers & Associates, Inc.) or by using the
currently available “Fast Search” function and entering our CIK number
(0001604197).


Ehlers has not made any material changes to Form MA or Form MA-I since that date.


Conflicts Arising from Compensation Contingent on the Size or Closing of
Any Transaction
The forms of compensation for municipal advisors vary according to the nature of
the engagement and requirements of the client.  Compensation contingent on the
size of the transaction presents a conflict of interest because the advisor may have
an incentive to advise the client to increase the size of the securities issue for the
purpose of increasing the advisor’s compensation. Compensation contingent on the
closing of the transaction presents a conflict because the advisor may have an
incentive to recommend unnecessary financings or recommend financings that are
disadvantageous to the client.  If the transaction is to be delayed or fail to close, an
advisor may have an incentive to discourage a full consideration of such facts and
circumstances, or to discourage consideration of alternatives that may result in the
cancellation of the financing or other transaction.


Any form of compensation due a Municipal Advisor will likely present specific conflict
of interests with the Client.  If a Client is concerned about the conflict arising from
Municipal Advisor compensation contingent on size and/or closing of their
transaction, Ehlers is willing to discuss and provide another form of Municipal
Advisor compensation.  The Client must notify Ehlers in writing of this request within
10 days of receipt of this Municipal Advisor writing.


MSRB Contact Information
The website address of the MSRB is www.msrb.org. Posted on the MSRB website is a
municipal advisory client brochure that describes the protections that may be
provided by MSRB rules and how to file a complaint with the financial regulatory
authorities.



http://www.sec.gov/edgar/searchedgar/companysearch.html





____________________________________________________________________________________________


Documentation of Municipal Advisor Relationship – Appendix B Page 1
Ehlers August 29, 2023


Appendix B


Scope of Service
Client has requested that Ehlers & Associates assist Client with Tax Increment District
No. 10 (“Project”). Ehlers & Associates proposes and agrees to provide the following
scope of services:


Phase I – Feasibility Analysis
The purpose of Phase I is to determine whether the Project is a statutorily and
economically feasible option to achieve the Client’s objectives. This phase
begins upon your authorization of this engagement and ends on completion
and delivery of a feasibility analysis report. As part of Phase I services, Ehlers &
Associates will:


Consult with appropriate Client officials to identify the Client’s objectives•
for the Project.


Provide feedback as to the appropriateness of using Tax Incremental•
Financing in the context of the “but for” test.


If the Project includes creation of or addition of territory to a district,•
identify preliminary boundaries and gather parcel data from Client.
Determine compliance with the following statutory requirements as
applicable:


Equalized Value test.o


Purpose test (industrial, mixed use, blighted area, in need ofo
rehabilitation or conservation, or environmental remediation).


Newly-platted residential land use test.o


Prepare feasibility analysis report.  The report will include the following•
information, as applicable:


Identification of the type or types of districts that may be created.o


A description of the type, maximum life, expenditure period ando
other features corresponding to the type of district proposed.


A summary of the development assumptions used with respect too
timing of construction and projected values.


Projections of tax increment revenue collections to include annualo
and cumulative present value calculations.


Qualification of the district as a donor or recipient of sharedo
increment, and projected impact of any allocations of shared
increment.


If debt financing is anticipated, a summary of the sizing, structure,o
and timing of proposed debt issues.







Documentation of Municipal Advisor Relationship – Appendix B Page 2
Ehlers August 29, 2023


A cash flow pro forma reflecting annual and cumulative district fundo
balances and projected year of closure.


A draft timetable for the Project.o


Identification of how the creation date may affect the district’so
valuation date, the base value, compliance with the equalized value
test, and the ability to capture current year construction values and
changes in economic value.


When warranted, evaluate, and compare options with respect too
boundaries, type of district, project costs and development levels.


Ehlers & Associates will provide guidance on district design withino
statutory limits to creatively achieve as many of the Client’s
objectives as possible and will provide liaison with State Department
of Revenue as needed in the technical evaluation of options.


Present the results of the feasibility analysis to the Client’s staff, Plan•
Commission, or governing body.


Phase II – Project Plan Development and Approval
If the Client elects to proceed following completion of the feasibility analysis,
the Project will move to Phase II. This phase includes preparation of the
Project Plan, and consideration by the Plan Commission1, governing body, and
the Joint Review Board. This phase begins after receiving notification from the
Client to proceed and ends after the Joint Review Board acts on the Project.
As part of Phase II services, Ehlers & Associates will:


Based on the goals and objectives identified in Phase I, prepare a draft•
Project Plan that includes all statutorily required components.


We will coordinate with your staff, engineer, planner or other designated•
party to obtain a map of the proposed boundaries of the district, a map
showing existing uses and conditions of real property within the district,
and a map showing proposed improvements and uses in the district.


Submit to the Client an electronic version of the draft Project Plan for initial•
review and comment.


Coordinate with Client staff to confirm dates and times for the meetings•
indicated within the table beginning on the following page. Ehlers &
Associates will ensure that selected dates meet all statutory timing
requirements and will provide documentation and notices as indicated.


1If Client has created a Redevelopment Authority or a Community Development Authority, that body may fulfill the
statutory requirements of the Plan Commission related to creation or amendment of the district.







Documentation of Municipal Advisor Relationship – Appendix B Page 3
Ehlers August 29, 2023


Meeting Ehlers  &  Associates
Responsibility Client Responsibility


Initial Joint
Review Board


Prepare Notice of Meeting and
transmit to Client’s designated paper.


Mail meeting notice, informational
materials, and draft Project Plan to
overlapping taxing jurisdictions.


Provide agenda language to Client.


Attend meeting to present draft
Project Plan.


Post or publish agenda and
provide notification as
required by the Wisconsin
Open Records Law.


Prepare meeting minutes.


Designate Client Joint Review
Board representative.


Identify and recommend
Public Joint Review Board
representative for
appointment.


Plan
Commission
Public
Hearing


Prepare Notice of Public Hearing and
transmit to Client’s designated paper.


Post or publish agenda and
provide notification as
required by the Wisconsin
Open Records Law.


Plan
Commission
Public
Hearing


For blighted area districts and in need
of rehabilitation or conservation
districts, provide a format for the
required individual property owner
notification letters.


Attend hearing to present draft
Project Plan.


Prepare and mail individual
property owner notices (only
for districts created as
blighted area, or in need of
rehabilitation or
conservation).


Prepare meeting minutes.


Plan
Commission


Provide agenda language to Client.


Attend meeting to present draft
Project Plan.


Provide approval resolution for Plan
Commission consideration.


Post or publish agenda and
provide notification as
required by the Wisconsin
Open Records Law.


Distribute Project Plan &
resolution to Plan
Commission members in
advance of meeting.


Prepare meeting minutes.


Governing
Body Action


Provide agenda language to Client.


Attend meeting to present draft
Project Plan.


Provide approval resolution for
governing body consideration.


Post or publish agenda and
provide notification as
required by the Wisconsin
Open Records Law.


Provide Project Plan &
resolution to governing body
members in advance of
meeting.


Prepare meeting minutes.







Documentation of Municipal Advisor Relationship – Appendix B Page 4
Ehlers August 29, 2023


Joint Review
Board Action


Mail meeting notice and copy of final
Project Plan to overlapping taxing
jurisdictions.


Prepare Notice of Meeting and
transmit to Client’s designated paper.


Provide agenda language to Client.


Attend meeting to present final
Project Plan.


Provide approval resolution for Joint
Review Board consideration.


Post or publish agenda and
provide notification as
required by the Wisconsin
Open Records Law.


Prepare meeting minutes.


Throughout the meeting process, provide drafts of the Project Plan and•
related documents in sufficient quantity for the Client’s staff, Plan
Commission, governing body and Joint Review Board members.


Provide advice and updated analysis on the impact of any changes made•
to the Project Plan throughout the approval process.


Phase III – State Submittal
This phase includes final review of all file documents, preparation of filing
forms, and submission of the base year or amendment packet to the
Department of Revenue.  This phase begins following approval of the district
by the Joint Review Board and ends with the submission of the base year or
amendment packet. As part of Phase III services, Ehlers & Associates will:


Coordinate with Client’s assessor and other staff as necessary to obtain•
parcel valuations, parcel data and other information needed for preparation
of the State forms that must be filed as part of the base year or
amendment packet.


Assemble and submit to the Department of Revenue the required base•
year or amendment packet to include a final Project Plan document
containing all required elements and information.


Provide the Client with an electronic copy of the final Project Plan (and up•
to 15 bound hard copies if desired).


Provide the municipal Clerk with a complete electronic and/or hard copy•
transcript of all materials as submitted to the Department of Revenue for
certification.


Act as a liaison between the Client and the Department of Revenue during•
the certification process in the event any questions or discrepancies arise.







Documentation of Municipal Advisor Relationship – Appendix B Page 5
Ehlers August 29, 2023


Compensation - Flat Fee Portion of Engagement
In  return  for  the  services  set  forth  in  the  “Scope  of  Service,”  Client  agrees  to
compensate Ehlers & Associates as follows:


Phase:


Cost of
Creation
without


Proforma
Services


Cost of
Creation with


Proforma
Services


Phase I $  6,500 $  3,500
Phase II $  8,000 $  8,000
Phase III $  2,500 $  2,500
Total $ 17,000 $ 14,000


Pricing for scenario where proforma services are provided includes a $3,000•
discount for Phase I services based on client’s separate engagement of Ehlers &
Associates to review the developer’s proforma for the project related to the
District. If for any reason that work does not proceed or cannot be completed
$3,000 will be added to the cost of Phase I for a total fee of $17,000.


Phase I base fee includes up to five financial scenarios. Additional scenarios will•
be run as needed at a cost of $750/scenario.


In the event Client determines not to proceed with the Project once a Phase has•
been authorized, but prior to that Phase’s completion, the compensation due for
that Phase will be prorated to reflect the percentage of the work completed.


Compensation – Hourly Services Portion of Engagement
Ehlers & Associates will bill Client on an hourly basis for services requested by Client
in conjunction with the engagement that are not specifically identified in the Scope
of Service set forth in this letter. Examples would include:


Review of development agreements related to the District’s Project Plan and•
participation in negotiations with developers.


Hourly services will be billed at a rate that is dependent upon the task/staff required
to meet Client request at no less than $125.00/hour and not to exceed $350.00/
hour.


Payment for Services
For  all  compensation  due  to  Ehlers  &  Associates,  we  will  invoice  Client  for  the
amount  due  at  the  completion  of  each  Phase.  Our  fees  include  our  normal  travel,
printing,  computer  services,  and  mail/delivery  charges.  The  invoice  is  due  and
payable upon receipt by the Client.


Client Responsibility
The following expenses are not included in our Scope of Services, and are the
responsibility of Client to pay directly:







Documentation of Municipal Advisor Relationship – Appendix B Page 6
Ehlers August 29, 2023


Services rendered by Client’s engineers, planners, surveyors, appraisers,•
assessors, attorneys, auditors, and others that may be called on by Client to
provide information related to completion of the Project.


Preparation of maps necessary for inclusion in the Project Plan.•


Preparation of maps necessary for inclusion in the base year or amendment•
packet.


Publication charge for the Notice of Public Hearing and Notices of Joint Review•
Board meetings.


Legal opinion advising that Project Plan contains all required elements.•
(Normally provided by municipal attorney).


Preparation of District metes & bounds description. (Needed in Phase III for•
creation of new districts, or amendments that add or subtract territory).


Department of Revenue filing fee and annual administrative fees. The current•
Department of Revenue fee structure is:


Current Wisconsin Department of Revenue Fee Schedules


Base Year Packet $1,000


Amendment Packet with Territory Addition
or Subtraction $1,000


Amendment Packet with Territory Addition
and Subtraction $2,000


Base Value Redetermination $1,000


Amendment Packet No Charge


Annual Administrative Fee $150


The above Proposal is hereby accepted by City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, by its
authorized officer:


_________________________________ ___________________________________
Signed Title





		09 R-137-2023 Enter into agreement with Ehlers to create TID No.pdf

		Stoughton_City of_WI_Dane County_ProjectDisclosure_2024 TID No. 10 Creation_08_29_2023_06_56_06.pdf










1


Dave Ehlinger


From: David Ferris <DFerris@ehlers-inc.com>
Sent: Wednesday, September 6, 2023 7:41 AM
To: Dave Ehlinger
Cc: Lisa Trebatoski; Kathy Myers
Subject: 2023 Bond Issue


CAUTION: This email originated from outside your organization. Exercise caution when opening attachments or clicking 
links, especially from unknown senders. 


Hi Dave, 


I had everything ready to go and had sent informa on to Quarles, but I forgot to change the project period for interest 
to 1 month. That will increase the issue from $6,265,000 to $6,305,000. 


Also, can you forward to me the declara on of intent to reimburse the City out of Bond proceeds that you put on file? 


For your informa on, below is the calendar of events that will appear in the presale report.  


Let me know if you have any ques ons. 


David Ferris
Senior Municipal Advisor 







2


O: (262) 796-6194 | ehlers-inc.com  


Stay connected to what’s happening in the markets. View our Issuer & Investor Updates! 


This e-mail and any attachments may contain information which is privileged or confidential. If you are not the intended recipient, note that any disclosure, copying, distribution 
or use of the contents of this message is prohibited. If you have received this e-mail in error, please destroy it and notify us immediately by return e-mail or at our telephone 
number, 800-552-1171. Any views or opinions presented in this e-mail are solely those of the author and may not represent the views or opinions of Ehlers Companies. 







Capital Project Listing


Item Department Purpose Funding Source 2023
Preventive Maintenance Planning/Public Works Street Improvement Projects GO Bonds 130,000       
Asphalt Overlay Program Planning/Public Works Street Improvement Projects GO Bonds 337,056       
Devonshire Planning/Public Works Street Improvement Projects GO Bonds 461,214       
Devonshire Planning/Public Works Street Improvement Projects GO Bonds (47,525)        
Roby Planning/Public Works Street Improvement Projects GO Bonds 465,365       
Roby Planning/Public Works Street Improvement Projects GO Bonds (32,025)        
Felland Planning/Public Works Street Improvement Projects GO Bonds 403,475       
Felland Planning/Public Works Street Improvement Projects GO Bonds (41,175)        
Felland Planning/Public Works Sewerage System Projects GO Bonds 8,424            
Sundt Planning/Public Works Street Improvement Projects GO Bonds 281,005       
Sundt Planning/Public Works Street Improvement Projects GO Bonds (34,500)        
Sundt Planning/Public Works Sewerage System Projects GO Bonds 8,424            
Homme Planning/Public Works Street Improvement Projects GO Bonds 113,870       
Homme Planning/Public Works Street Improvement Projects GO Bonds (12,875)        
Bickley Ct               Planning/Public Works Street Improvement Projects GO Bonds 224,114       
Bickley Ct               Planning/Public Works Street Improvement Projects GO Bonds (21,625)        
Bickley Ct               Planning/Public Works Sewerage System Projects GO Bonds 67,860         
North St Planning/Public Works Street Improvement Projects GO Bonds 211,478       
North St Planning/Public Works Street Improvement Projects GO Bonds (29,625)        
North St Planning/Public Works Sewerage System Projects GO Bonds 105,066       
Jackson St                        Planning/Public Works Street Improvement Projects GO Bonds 487,247       
Jackson St                        Planning/Public Works Street Improvement Projects GO Bonds (46,225)        
Jackson St                        Planning/Public Works Sewerage System Projects GO Bonds 522,405       
Kensington Sq Planning/Public Works Street Improvement Projects GO Bonds 180,000       
Kensington Sq Planning/Public Works Street Improvement Projects GO Bonds (27,755)        
Olson Ct Planning/Public Works Street Improvement Projects GO Bonds 50,000         
Olson Ct Planning/Public Works Street Improvement Projects GO Bonds (1,655)          
Veterans Rd Storm Sewer Planning/Public Works Sewerage System Projects GO Bonds 128,291       
Hydro dynamic Separator Planning/Public Works Sewerage System Projects GO Bonds 60,000         
Lyland storm sewer sump pump discharge - phase 1 Planning/Public Works Sewerage System Projects GO Bonds 26,000         
Sidewalk Program Planning/Public Works Street Improvement Projects GO Bonds 100,000       







Capital Project Listing


Item Department Purpose Funding Source 2023
Sidewalk Program Planning/Public Works Street Improvement Projects GO Bonds (50,000)        
DOT Majors Project Engineering Planning/Public Works Street Improvement Projects GO Bonds 25,000         
Engineering and Design for the BIL Project Planning/Public Works Street Improvement Projects GO Bonds 50,000         
Engineering and Design for the BIL Project Planning/Public Works Sewerage System Projects GO Bonds 20,000         
2024 Project Street Engineering Planning/Public Works Street Improvement Projects GO Bonds 100,000       
2024 Project Stormwater Engineering Planning/Public Works Sewerage System Projects GO Bonds 20,000         
PPE Purchase/Replacement Fire Department Fire Department Equipment GO Bonds 50,130         
ATV-2 Skid Unit Replacement Fire Department Fire Department Equipment GO Bonds 5,000            
Firecom Installs (headsets tying into radios) Fire Department Fire Department Equipment GO Bonds 70,000         
Copier Fire Department Fire Department Equipment GO Bonds 11,000         
Mobile Radios (quantity 18) Fire Department Fire Department Equipment GO Bonds 170,000       
Brush Truck Update Fire Department Fire Department Equipment GO Bonds 6,500            
Computer, MDC update Fire Department Fire Department Equipment GO Bonds 10,000         
Dispatch radio / computer update (Fire Department portion) - see also Police portionFire Department Fire Department Equipment GO Bonds 130,000       
Council Microphone System City Council  GO Notes 40,000         
New furniture for Council Chambers City Council  GO Notes 13,500         
WSTO Van Replacement Info Tech / Media Services  GO Notes 50,000         
Studio Lights and Cameras (4) Info Tech / Media Services  GO Notes 12,000         
Network Upgrades Info Tech / Media Services  GO Notes 25,000         
Computer Replacement/Office Licensing Info Tech / Media Services  GO Notes 30,000         
ADA Transition Plan Implementation Parks & Recreation Park Projects GO Bonds 35,000         
Bike Rack Initiative - Reclassed as CIP not tax levy DPE 10-06-2022 Parks & Recreation Park Projects GO Bonds 3,225            
Bjoin Park Native Planting Area Grow In Program Parks & Recreation Park Projects GO Bonds 3,000            
Division St Park Shoreline Grow-In Program Parks & Recreation Park Projects GO Bonds 2,000            
Norse Park Infield Rehabilitation Parks & Recreation Park Projects GO Bonds 26,000         
Norse Park Playground Parks & Recreation Park Projects GO Bonds 175,000       
Park Ammenities (Trash Benches, Signs) - Reclass as CIP not tax levy, need to separate future years into cap v non-capParks & Recreation Park Projects GO Bonds 5,000            
River Trail Planning Study (Cooper's Causeway - Mandt Park) Parks & Recreation Park Projects GO Bonds 35,000         
River Trail Planning Study (Cooper's Causeway - Mandt Park) - grant revenue Parks & Recreation Park Projects GO Bonds (28,000)        
Skate Park update Parks & Recreation Park Projects GO Bonds 20,000         
Troll Beach Bath House Rehab Parks & Recreation Park Projects GO Bonds 35,000         







Capital Project Listing


Item Department Purpose Funding Source 2023
Virgin Lake Trail Construction - Buckingham to Roby Parks & Recreation Park Projects GO Bonds 315,000       
Virgin Lake Trail Construction - Jackson to Buckingham Parks & Recreation Park Projects GO Bonds 150,000       
Virgin Lake Trail Construction - Roby to 51 West Parks & Recreation Park Projects GO Bonds 175,000       
Computers and peripherals Library Library Projects GO Bonds 7,000            
Furniture and fixtures Library Library Projects GO Bonds 3,000            
Cabinets and countertops for Carnegie Room Library Library Projects GO Bonds 10,000         
Improvements to lot at 216 E Jefferson St. Library Library Projects GO Bonds 30,000         
Squad 270 (including outfitting and changeover) Police Department  GO Notes 60,661         
Squad 276 Police Department  GO Notes 60,234         
Squad 279 - Neighboorhood Electric Vehicle (NEV) replacement Police Department  GO Notes 20,000         
Squad Car Laptops replacement (quantity 2) Police Department  GO Notes 6,000            
BOLOWrap Less lethal devices (quantity 4) Police Department  GO Notes 5,600            
Community Interface Cameras Police Department  GO Notes 5,000            
Digital Forensic Computer Hardware Police Department  GO Notes 5,000            
Automatic License Plat Recognition (ALPR) fixed camera (quantity one) Police Department  GO Notes 25,000         
Automatic License Plat Recognition (ALPR) fixed camera (quantity one) - grant proceedsPolice Department  GO Notes (25,000)        
Portable Radios (quantity 5) Police Department  GO Notes 27,500         
Radio system upgrades (Police portion only - see also Fire Dept.) Police Department  GO Notes 273,540       
Computer Aided Dispatch (CAD) county interface Police Department  GO Notes 5,500            
Senior Center Electronic Door Controls Planning & Development GO Notes 35,000         
Senior Center Elevator - Complete Upgrade Planning & Development GO Notes 80,000         
Senior Center Boiler Expansion Tank Replacement Planning & Development GO Notes 5,000            
Replace - GMC 1 ton Sierra #58 with Ford F-350 Public Works Street Improvement Projects GO Bonds 65,500         
Replace - GMC 1 ton Sierra #58 with Ford F-350 - estimated trade value Public Works Street Improvement Projects GO Bonds (3,000)          
Replace - International 4300 bucket truck #33 Public Works Street Improvement Projects GO Bonds 213,000       
Replace - International 4300 bucket truck #33  - estimated trade value Public Works Street Improvement Projects GO Bonds (20,000)        
Replace - Scagg mower #32 Public Works Park Projects GO Bonds 7,500            
Replace - Scagg mower #32  - estimated trade value Public Works Park Projects GO Bonds (1,000)          
Addition - Ford F250 with lift gate Public Works Street Improvement Projects GO Bonds 65,050         
Replace - Chevrolet C3500 #11 with Ford F350 Public Works Street Improvement Projects GO Bonds 65,500         
Replace - Chevrolet C3500 #11 with Ford F350 - trade in value Public Works Street Improvement Projects GO Bonds (5,000)          







Capital Project Listing


Item Department Purpose Funding Source 2023
Replace - Case IH tractor #26 Public Works Street Improvement Projects GO Bonds 112,000       
Replace - Case IH tractor #26 - trade in value Public Works Street Improvement Projects GO Bonds (30,000)        


Total Capital Projects 6,924,247    
Funding Sources


GO Notes 759,535       
GO Bonds 6,164,712    


-                    
Total Project Funding Sources 6,924,247    





		04d Timing of 2023 bond issue.pdf

		2023 CIP 9.5.23.pdf



